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CITY OF BATON ROUGE 
PARISH OF EAST BATON ROUGE 

ON BEHALF OF THE  
GREATER BATON ROUGE METROPOLITAN AIRPORT DISTRICT 

 
July 1, 2020 

 
ADDENDUM NO. 2 

 
TO: ALL BIDDERS 

 
DEMOLITION OF MULTIPLE STRUCTURES FOR  

RUNWAY 13/31 SAFETY AREA AND RPZ RUNWAY IMPROVEMENTS  
LA HWY. 67 / PLANK RD. PHASE I DEMOLITION 

 
BID DATE: THURSDAY, JULY 9, 2020 @ 2:00 P.M. 
 
The following revisions shall be incorporated in and take precedence over any conflicting part of the 
original Contract Documents. 
 
Until further notice, while the suspension of bid openings to the members of the public is in effect, 
public attendance at the scheduled bid opening will only be allowed via teleconference at the 
numbers noted below. 
 
Teleconference Call-In Information for Public Access to Bid Opening while Public Bid Openings 
suspended: 
 
Join by Phone 

+1 (408) 418-9388 United States Toll 
Access code:  263 373 080 (followed by the # button) 

Alternate numbers to call if number above is not available, which may occur due to the network traffic 
(use the same Access Code, followed by the # button): 

United States Toll (Boston):  +1 (617) 315-0704 
United States Toll (Chicago): +1 (312) 535-8110 
United States Toll (Dallas): +1 (469) 210-7159 
United States Toll (Denver): +1 (720) 650 7664 
United States Toll (Jacksonville): +1 (904) 900-2303 
United States Toll (Los Angeles): +1 (213) 306-3065 
 
PRE-BID CONFERENCE DOCUMENTS 
There was an OPTIONAL Pre-Bid Conference held on Tuesday, June 16, 2020 at 2:00 PM.  Attached is the 
Sign-In Sheet numbered AD2-8 and the Agenda numbered AD2-9 thru AD2-10. 
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AIR SPACE PERMIT 
The Baton Rouge Metropolitan Airport District has received a “Determination of No Hazard to Air 
Navigation for Temporary Structure” finding for the use of a crane for the removal of the project 
structure.  As a condition to this determination, the equipment is to be marked/lighted in accordance 
with FAA Advisory Circular 70/7460-1 L Change 2, Obstruction Marking and Lighting, Flags/Red lights 
Chapters 3, 4, 5 & 12. 
 
TECHNICAL SPECIFICATIONS 
Technical Specifications, Division I, Page i-15, 1.5 Disadvantage Business Enterprise, Second Paragraph:  
Delete this paragraph in its entirety and Replace with the following: 

 “Prompt Payment – The prime contractor agrees to pay each subcontractor under this prime 
contract for satisfactory performance of its contract no later than fourteen (14) days from 
receipt of each payment the prime contractor receives from the Owner.  The prime contractor 
agrees further to return retainage payment to each subcontractor within fourteen (14) days 
after the subcontractor’s work is satisfactorily completed.  Any delay or postponement of 
payment from the above referenced time frame may occur only for good cause following 
written approval of the Owner.  This clause applies to both DBE and Non-DBE subcontractors.” 

 
Technical Specifications, Division II, Federal Specifications, General Provisions, Section 70, Legal 
Regulations and Responsibility to Public, Section 70-11, Responsibility for Damage Claims, Paragraph A, 
Commercial General Liability on an occurrence basis are modified as follows:   

 General Aggregate  $5,000,000 
 Products – Com/OP Agg  $5,000,000 

 All other limits remain as is. 
 
Technical Specifications, Division III, Special Provisions, Section 110, Network Plan Schedule, Paragraph 
110.01, Summary:  Add the following Subparagraph E. 

E. Sequence of Construction:  The Contractor will provide a schedule that is inclusive of 
demolition activities commencing first at the Jones Residence and the Quality Site in 
order to clear facilities prior to Roadway Contractor of the Phase I project operations 
commence in that area.  The schedule for the sequencing of demolition must show 
these buildings being demolished in a timely manner to avoid potential conflicts with 
the Roadway Contractor that will be working in the same area.  The Contractor shall 
provide at the Pre-Construction Meeting a Draft Project Schedule to review and discuss 
that will account for this sequencing.  This schedule shall be provided using Primavera or 
Microsoft Software packages. 

Technical Specifications, Section 00312, Environmental Assessment Information Available to Bidders is 
added to the specifications to provide the summary and disposal recommendations and requirements of 
the asbestos sampling completed on the sites and is included in addendum numbered AD2-11 thru AD2-
65. 

CONSTRUCTION DRAWINGS 
Drawings, Sheet No. A001, Overall Site Plan Notes, Detail No. 1:  Delete this detail in its entirety and 
Replace with the Sketch numbered AD2-66.  The two storage sheds originally shown are not part of the 
Jones Residence property and shall remain.  The Jones Residence storage sheds to be removed are now 
indicated on the enclosed Sketch numbered AD2-66. 

BIDDER QUESTIONS 
Q1. We would like to know what the engineer’s estimate is for the project. 
A1. $450,000.00 
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Q2. The Construction Documents title is “Demolition of Multiple Structures for Runway 13/31 Safety 
Area and RPZ Runway Improvements LA Hwy. 67/Plant Rd. Phase I Demolition” but the Bid Bond 
form just has it as “Plank Rd. Rehab”, want to confirm which title the bid bond form should read 
before issuing? 

A2. Construction Document title is the correct project name. 
 
Q3. In consideration that this project is a “Public Works” project and subject to Louisiana State Bid 

Law (R.S. 38:2212), I am requesting that Bidders be made aware of the Engineer’s Estimated 
Cost of the work. 

A3. Refer to A1 in this addendum.   
 
Q4. Will Project Identification Signage be required?  If Project ID Signs are required, considering that 

there will be three (3) jobsite locations, will the Owner/Engineer require three (3) separate 
signs? 

A4. One project sign will be required located at the Buzbee property facing Hooper Road. 
 
Q5. With the exception of non-contaminated Construction and Demolition Debris, should Bidders 

base their bids on having to handle and/or dispose of any contaminated, hazardous or industrial 
waste, wastewater, pollutants, solvents, tires, asbestos, lead, radioactive and/or contaminated 
materials or soils? 

A5. Included within this addendum is the Asbestos Sampling Report performed by ACSI 
Environmental Consultants.  As stated at the Pre-Bid Conference there is asbestos material at 
the Jones Residence and at two of the office buildings on the Buzbee property.  It is the 
responsibility of the Bidders to adhere to the guidelines provided in this report for the proper 
removal and disposal of the asbestos containing material. 

 
Q6. Has environmental testing been done on the project sites to determine that no contaminants 

are present? 
A6. Refer to A5 in this addendum. 
 
Q7. Please provide a list of all Plan-holders/Bidders? 
A7. Project Engineer Plan Holder List included numbered AD2-67 thru AD2-68.  Bidders obtaining 

through Bid Express are not available at this time and thus not provided. 
 
Q8. The project specifications require very large limits for General Liability: (a) $10 million for 

general aggregate, (b) $10 million for products-comm/OP agg., (c) $5 million for personal and 
adv. Injury, (d) $5 million each occurrence.  We have been trying for weeks to obtain quote to 
increase coverage to these limits and have been told by 2 different local Commercial Insurance 
Agents that for this type of work with these limits they cannot provide a quote.  Considering 
that the work is taking place outside of the BTR secured perimeter fence, will the Owner 
consider reducing these limits to $1 million per occurrence/$2 Million aggregate? Or anything 
lower than the limits shown in the specifications? 

A8. Refer to Technical Specifications Section indicated in this addendum for modifications of 
limits. 

 
Q9. Will there be a date when the Jones storage facilities and Buzbee buildings can be accessed 

before the bid? 
A9. No access will be provided but below is a brief description noted at each facility on the Buzbee 

property from a prior walk through.  Contractor is responsible for verifying existing conditions 
prior to submittal of bids. 
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 The following description is from a site inspection completed by Architects Plus in July 2019 
and is provided strictly for informational purposes for the Bidders use. 

 
 “The subject parcel noted as Buzbee property is located at 5395 Hooper Road.  The site has 

several different structures on the property and each building can serve different uses.  The 
site around Building 1 is currently used as a waste holding site on the eastern portion of the 
site.  Building 1 faces south (Hooper Road) and contains a 4-bay open warehouse and office 
space.  Open storage space was noted in the building above the office space and is accessed 
from a single stair located in the open warehouse.  Building 1 also contains a fenced in area 
that contains an above ground storage tank yard and contains 6 uncovered storage tanks of 
varies sizes and two storage tanks located underneath a metal canopy.  

 
 Building 2 is located on the north side (behind) of Building 1 and appears to house a pump 

which is not currently in use.  A free-standing structure (Building 5) appears to have been used 
as a fueling station and is located southeast of Building 1.  The fueling station does not appear 
to be functional at the time of inspection.  Building 3 is located on the southern portion of the 
site and faces south (Hooper Road).  Building 3 is currently being used as storage.  A small 
free-standing structure (Building 6) is located on the west side of Building 3 and serves as a 
restroom that is only accessible from the outside work yard. 

 
 Building 4 is located on the southwestern portion of the side and is currently vacant.  The 

buildings’ previous use appears to be a combination of office space at the front of the building 
and open warehouse (storage) in the rear of the structure.  Building 4 appears to have 
concrete paving for vehicle parking and is located between the building and Hooper Road.” 

 
Q10. Concerning these buildings, what should be expected as far as quantity of “contents”? 
A10. Each property owner has been notified to remove all contents from their property site and the 

Owner anticipates having this completed prior to Notice to Proceed.  Minimal contents should 
be left on-site by property owners. 

 
Q11. I am aware that Jones family is still on their property.  Will they be taking all items from the 

storage sheds with them at move out?  I saw a great deal of old tires, trash, etc.  Are bidders to 
include this material or assume personal items to be removed by others? 

A11. Personal items are the responsibility of the property owner.  Bidders are to assume there will 
be some miscellaneous trash and debris left over that must be removed.  A new Sketch 
labeled AD2-66 is provided clarifying the storage sheds to be removed at Jones Residence. 

 
Q12. With respect to the numerous vehicles (cars, trucks, and trailer) on the Buzbee site that are 

located behind the metal buildings, (a) will these vehicles be removed by the Owner prior to the 
demolition contractor starting its work or will the demolition contractor be responsible for 
removing these vehicles? 

A12. Refer to A10 and A11 of this addendum. 
 
Q13. It was our understanding from the Project Engineer’s presentation at the Pre-Bid Conference 

that Bidder’s cannot have pre-bid access to the site(s) because the site(s) are occupied. 

(a) Please confirm that bidders WILL NOT be permitted to access any of the interiors of any of 
the buildings and/or specially the Buzbee site/yard to make inspections and/or verifications 
of existing conditions. 

(b) Immediately following the Pre-Bid Conference, we parked outside of the Buzbee site main 
gate and were approached by a gentleman who stated that he did part-time work at that 
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facility.  When we asked him, what was inside of the metal building warehouses, he 
explained that some of the building were full of various items.  There are also several notes 
shown on the Project Drawings that require the Contractor to remove and haul away “all 
contents”.  Considering that the haul off and disposal is a Major Expense, please answer the 
following questions. 
1) If access to be buildings will not be permitted, bidders have no information to use to 

quantify debris disposal quantities of the contents.  Will the Owner/Engineer consider 
incorporating a Unit Price Bid Item for debris/material removal, transportation, and 
disposal of the contents, other than the visible items called out on the project drawings? 

2) If access to the buildings is not permitted, can the Owner/Engineer please provide 
photos of the interiors of the buildings so bidders can have some idea of what, and how 
much, materials and/or debris contents is located inside the buildings? 

3) Are there any items inside of any of the buildings that the Owner wants the demolition 
contractor to salvage and turn over to the Owner, or Owner’s designated parties? 

A13. (a) Refer to A9 in this addendum. 
(b) (1)  No 
(b) (2) Refer to A9 in this addendum for Buzbee property description.  Photos of the interior of 

some of the building are found within the ACSI Asbestos Sampling Report included within 
this addendum numbered AD2-11 thru AD2-65. 

(b) (3) There is an existing in 10” water main located at the Quality site which must be 
maintained.  There are no salvageable items within the Buzbee or Jones properties. 

 
Q14. Other than typical building concrete slab/foundation, do the buildings contain any 

underground/below grade improvements including, but not limited to; oil/grease pits, tanks, 
storage, basements, cellars, or vaults? 

A14. The Owner has not been made aware, at this time, of any of those items being onsite. 
 
Q15. From looking into the Buzbee site from outside the front gate/fence, it appears that there is an 

abundance of vegetative overgrowth, threes, weeds, etc., (particularly on the side of the 
drainage canal), that has encroached over the sides and rear property lines across the fence 
onto the site.  Is it the intent of this contract to have the demolition contractor clear, remove 
and dispose of this vegetative matter along the perimeter fence and property line and grade 
these areas? 

A15. The Bidders are responsible for the clearing, removal and disposal of all vegetative growth in 
the areas of demolition activities and the grading of those affected areas. 

 
Q16. There is quite a bit of trees, bushes, and weeds growing inside to the interior of Buzbee and 

Jones Residence sites.  Is it the intent of this contract to have the demolition contractor clear, 
remove and dispose of all trees, bushes and weeds within these sites? 

A16. Refer to A15 above in this addendum. 
 
Q17. There are several above ground storage tanks visible and shown on the project drawings. 

(a) Is there any liquid, or solids, presently stored inside of these tanks?  If so, please identify 
exactly what is in these tanks. 

(b) In addition to the above ground tanks, do any of the sites contain any below ground tanks, 
including, but not limited to, fuel, oil, grease, septic, water, chemicals, or any other product 
of any type? 

A17. (a)  The property owners are responsible for removal of the contents of the tanks. 
(b) The Owner is not aware of any underground tanks within the properties. 
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Q18. Transformers – The drawings show two (2) transformers on the Buzbee site that are to be 
removed. 
(a) Have these transformers been tested for PCB’s?  If so, please provide test data.  If they have 

not been tested, how does the Owner/Engineer want to handle the costs for testing and any 
special handling and/or disposal costs? 

(b) Other than the 2 transformers at the Buzbee site, are there any other transformers 
scheduled for removal under this contract? 

A18. (a) and (b) Bidders are to include the costs associated with the testing, removal and disposal of 
all electrical equipment within the property. 

 
Q19. With respect to Imported Fill and Final Grading – Sheet A-100 of the project drawings, calls for 

sand fill to be used to backfill building foundations and to “Match Existing Grade with New Sand 
Fill”. 
(a) Other than within the footprint of the buildings that are scheduled to be demolished, does 

the Owner/Engineer want the Contractor to import sand fill for site fill and/or grading 
purposes of any other areas? 

(b) If the Owner/Engineer does want additional sand fill to be provided by  the Contractor, 
other than within the footprint of the buildings, will they consider incorporating a Unit Price 
Bid Item for the Additional Sand Fill since these other unknown areas cannot be quantified? 

(c) IF the Owner/Engineer does want additional Sand Fill to be provided by the Contractor, 
other than within the footprint of the buildings, can the Owner/Engineer please provide a 
Grading Plan? 

(d) Does the Owner/Engineer want the limestone parking areas at the Buzbee site to be 
covered with Sand Fill or can they be left with existing limestone surface? 

(e) After demolition and grading is complete, does the Owner/Engineer want the Contractor to 
provide grass by way of see, fertilizer, hydro-seeding or sod at any of the sites?  If so, please 
specify which product is desired and which sites receive grassing.  Will the Contractor be 
required to water and/or mow the site(s)? 

A19. (a) (b) (c) Bidders are responsible for bringing the areas affected by the demolition activities 
back to existing grade.  If fill dirt is required to accomplish this the bidders should include that 
within their pricing. 
(d) Existing limestone surface is to remain. 
(e) No additional work is required on the areas affected by the demolition activities as the 

roadway contractor will be commencing activities in those areas.  
 
Q20. Should we include the cost of removal/disposal of all tires and debris that has been 

dumped/stored onsite? 
A20. Refer to A10 and A11 of this addendum and note the Sketch numbered AD2-66 clarifying the 

storage sheds to be demolished on the Jones Residence property. 
 
Q21. Who is responsible for the disconnect of the utilities from the structures that will be 

demolished? 
A21. Bidders are responsible for the cost of disconnect and removal of utilities up to the property 

line. 
 
Q22. Can we burn the trees we clear onsite? 
A22. This WILL NOT be allowed due to safety concerns in and around the airport property and air 

traffic. 
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Q23. Please consider adding license classification of “Highway, Street, and Bridge Construction” and 
also the specialty classification “Rigging, House Moving, Wrecking and Dismantling” to bid 
requirements. 

A23. License classification remains as stated in the Advertisement to Bid and Instructions to Bidder. 
 
Q24. Which of the following applies to this contract? 

A. Page i-15, Second Paragraph under 1.5 states:  “Prompt Payment – The prime contractor 
agrees to pay each subcontractor under this prime contract for satisfactory performance of 
its contract not later than seven days from the receipt of each payment…”. 

B. Page ii-35, Second Paragraph under 90-06 states:  “The Contractor is required to pay all 
subcontractor for satisfactory performance of their contracts no later than 30 days after 
the Contractor has received a partial payment.” 

C. Page iii-8, Paragraph H states:  “Prompt Payment – Under the DBE program, the prime 
contractor agrees to pay each subcontractor under this prime contract for satisfactory 
performance of its contract no later than 14 days from receipt of each payment the prime 
contractor receives from BRMA. 

D. Page i-47, Paragraph B states:  Prompt Payment:  Under the DBE program, the prime 
contractor or consultant agrees to pay each subcontractor or subconsultant under this 
contract for satisfactory performance of its contract prior to submitting an invoice to the 
BRMA for request for payment.” 

A24.     Refer to Technical Specifications Section indicated in this addendum for clarification of these 
items.  

 
Q25. Can you identify the liquid in each tank mentioned on Page 01100-1, Paragraph C under 1.4?  

Also, if Owner does not remove the liquid in tanks and the contractor is to provide a turn-key 
package about the removal of the tanks, additional pay will be provided, correct? 

A25. Refer to A17 of this addendum. 
 
Q26. Are there any known contaminants such as asbestos on site?  If yes, can you provide 

information as to location of contaminants. 
A26.   Refer to Technical Specifications Section 00312 included in this addendum and A5 of this 

addendum. 
 
Q27. There are holes in the building as a result of the removal of oil traps.  These holes are full of 

water with a strong order of diesel.  Is the environmental company on site to remedy this issue?  
If no, can you provide information as to how to approach this issue on the bid? 

A27. A Phase II site investigation report was completed by Compliance Consultants, Inc. dated 
December 2018 and no environmental problems were identified.  The report is available for 
viewing but is not included within this addendum.  Any soil disturbed by the demolition 
activities should be disposed of in an environmentally proper manner and costs included in 
Lump Sum bid. 

 
Q28. It appears that there are several cars abandoned on site.  If they are to be removed by 

contractor, who holds title/can they be legally removed? 
A28. Refer to A10, A11 and A12 of this addendum. 
 
Q29. Are the tires adjacent to the Jones Residence to be removed? 
A29. Refer to new Sketch provided under Construction Drawings numbered AD2-66.  These tires 

are located on the property adjacent to the Jones Residence and thus NOT a part of this 
contract. 
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PRE-BID CONFERENCE AGENDA 

Runway 13-31 Safety Area & RPZ Improvements 
LA 67/Plank Rd Phase I Demolition 

2:00 PM Tuesday, June 16, 2020 

Meeting Location:  Airport Terminal Conference Room – First Floor 
Project Location:  Baton Rouge Metropolitan Airport 

Sponsor: Greater Baton Rouge Airport District 

Sponsor’s Representative: Joseph Levraea, Program Manager, AMG  
 Phone: 225-358-4240 Fax: 225-358-4261 

Design Engineer: Meyer Engineers, Ltd. & Volkert, Inc. 
Phone: Volkert - 225-218-9440 

Meyer Engineers – 504-885-8892 

INTRODUCTIONS: 

1. Baton Rouge Metropolitan Airport (Owner)
a. Mike Edwards, Director of Aviation
b. Greg Pierson, Assistant Director of Aviation
c. Michael Taffaro, Airport Legal Counsel
d. Craig Alford, Airport Operations
e. Jerry Webber, Construction Superintendent

2. Program Managers (Owner’s Representatives): AMG
a. Joseph D. Levraea, Program Manager
b. Sparky Hoffman, Project Manager

3. Designers/Architect: Volkert, Inc.
a. Ray Hartley & Ashley Beckendorf, Project Managers

4. Inspection/Testing Services:
a. Senior Project Inspector – TBD
b. Quality Assurance Laboratory for Owner, TBD
c. Quality Control Laboratory – Provided by Contractor

5. Contractors
Self-introductions 

6. Other Representatives in Attendance
Self-introductions 
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SPECIAL INSTRUCTIONS: 

1. DBE instructions
Presented by Kenyatta Sparks 

SJB Group 
2. Davis-Bacon Wage Rates

Kenya Wallace, Baton Rouge Metro Airport 

GENERAL CONTRACT REQUIREMENTS: 
1. General Type of Work – Construction of a new roadway for future relocation of Plank

Road from Hooper Road to the existing Plank Road. Includes construction of a Portland
Cement Concrete roadway with asphalt shoulders, aggregate base course, drainage
structures, signing, pavement markings, and lighting. (It was noted that this was incorrect
and only includes demolition of structures. Description given by Ray Hartley under 3.
Project Detail.)

2. Contract Provisions
a. Plans and Specifications are available online at www.bidexpress.com;

Also available from:
Meyer Engineers, Inc. 
4937 Hearst St., Suite 1B 
Metairie, LA 70001 
504-885-8892

Bid Opening 
Time & Date: 2:00 p.m., Thursday, June 25, 2020 
Location: City/Parish Purchasing Office, 8th Floor 

b. Instructions to Bidders
c. Electronic Bidding
d. Bid Forms
e. Addendums, if any
f. Contract Forms

3. Project Detail:
Overview of Scope – Ray Hartley, Meyer Engineer, Ltd. 

a. Contract Duration (150 calendar days)
b. Contractor Coordination with Roadway Project
c. Phasing as shown in plans
c. Project Layout/Lay down
d. Permitting
e. Airspace Requirements – 7460 Determination

4. Questions
a. Open for discussion
b. Please submit all questions in written email format to the Project Engineer at

Ashley.beckendorf@volkert.com by 5:00 pm Thursday June 18, 2020. They will
be reviewed and responded to in an addendum, if applicable.

5. Pre-Bid Conference Adjourned
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SECTION 00312: ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT INFORMATION AVAILABLE TO 
BIDDERS 

An assessment has been performed at the project site to determine the presence 
and probable extent of asbestos, lead-containing or hazardous materials in the existing 
building materials and this information is attached for informational purposes only.  The 
environmental assessment information is not part of the contract.  Asbestos abatement is 
part of the contract and an asbestos abatement specification is included at the end of the 
specification. 

There is no expressed or implied guarantee as to the accuracy of the assessment 
data nor of the interpretation thereof.  Each bidder must form his own opinion of the 
character of the materials which will be encountered in this work from a inspection of the 
site, from his own interpretation of the environmental assessment information, and from 
such other investigations as he may desire. 

It is the bidder’s responsibility to verify all materials and field conditions prior to 
renovation, demolition, reconstruction, alteration, remodeling, or repair that may affect the 
performance of their work. 

Any additional samples, studies, reports, etc. that are required for bidding or 
construction purposes are the responsibility of the Contractor.  Failure of the bidder to 
review any such information, his failure to properly interpret same, or his failure to 
undertake additional tests will not relieve him of his obligations. 
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